

CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD
CENTRAL VALLEY REGION

AMENDMENT 1 TO CLEANUP AND ABATEMENT ORDER NO. R5-2006-0721

FOR
MA-RU HOLDING COMPANY, INC.
BONZI SANITATION LANDFILL, INC PARTNERSHIP

BONZI SANITATION LANDFILL
STANISLAUS COUNTY

This amendment to outstanding Cleanup and Abatement Order R5-2006-0721 (the "CAO") conditionally requires uninterrupted replacement water service and is issued to the Ma-Ru Holding Company, Inc., and to Bonzi Sanitation Landfill, Inc. ("Discharger") based on provisions of California Water Code (CWC) Section 13304, which authorizes the Executive Officer of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central Valley Region ("Central Valley Water Board") to issue and/or amend Cleanup and Abatement Orders, and all applicable law.

The Executive Officer of the Central Valley Water Board finds¹ with respect to the Discharger's acts, or failure to act, the following:

1. Beginning 31 January 2008, or earlier, and until at least 2 November 2008, or later, the Discharger operated the Bonzi Sanitation Landfill (landfill) without complying with the CAO's monitoring and/or reporting requirements. During this time, the Discharger also failed to comply with the monitoring and/or reporting requirements imposed by Waste Discharge Requirements Order R5-2007-0148.
2. The Discharger's failure to comply with applicable monitoring and/or reporting requirements has prevented the Central Valley Water Board from evaluating site conditions and the migration of contaminants released from the landfill into groundwater. Because of the Discharger's failure to comply with the its monitoring requirements, no complete data set for the monitoring wells discussed below exists after the Third Quarter 2007 sampling event.
3. Based on data previously provided by the Discharger, the groundwater extraction system installed by the Discharger is likely not capturing the entirety of the existing plume of contaminants in groundwater. Downgradient domestic water supply wells near the landfill have been impacted by volatile organic compounds (VOCs), and the

¹ The Findings and Content of Cleanup and Abatement Order R5-2006-0721 are hereby incorporated into this Amendment by this reference as if set forth in full.

nearby Riverdale Community drinking water supply well² is threatened by the contaminant plume.

4. The direction of groundwater flow fluctuates from the northwest to the north-northwest, with gradients ranging from 0.0020 to 0.0030 ft/ft. The Riverdale Community water supply well is directly downgradient from Bonzi Waste Management Unit 1 and the leading edge of the Bonzi plume, approximately 500-feet from the northern boundary of the landfill.
5. VOCs associated with landfill waste are detected from the southern-most extent of the landfill northward to within 30 feet of the Riverdale well. Monitoring well 06-09 is adjacent to the unlined Waste Management Unit III at the southeastern boundary of the site (as shown on Attachment A of this Order). Monitoring well 06-09 is the furthest detection monitoring well from the Riverdale well (~3,000-feet upgradient). Data from this well indicates that groundwater contains a VOC, 1,1 – DCA, above its maximum contaminant level (MCL). In addition, byproducts produced by the breakdown of chlorinated VOCs are also present. Other VOCs that were detected below their respective MCLs include benzene, chloroform, dichlorodifluoromethane, methyl-tert-butyl ether (MTBE), and trichlorofluoromethane.

MONITORING WELL 06-09					
monitoring event	PCE ¹	TCE ²	1,1-DCA ₃	1,1-DCE ₄	cis -1,2 – DCE ⁵
3Q06		0.9 ug/l	38 ug/l	0.43 ug/l	0.92 ug/l
4Q06	0.61 ug/l	1.1 ug/l	29 ug/l	0.84 ug/l	1.1 ug/l
1Q07	0.49 ug/l	0.94 ug/l	30 ug/l	0.37 ug/l	1.0 ug/l
2Q07	0.48 ^J ug/l	0.58 ug/l	24 ug/l		0.77 ug/l
3Q07	0.35 ^J ug/l	0.59 ^J ug/l	23 ug/l	0.38 ^J ug/l	0.95 ^J ug/l

1. MCL= 5 ug/l, PHG = 0.06 ug/l
2. MCL "Goal" = 0.0 ug/l, PHG = 0.8 ug/l
3. MCL = 5 ug/l
4. MCL = 6 ug/l. Public Health Advisory = 0.06 ug/l
5. MCL = 6 ug/l

J value: detected above the method detection limit, yet value is below the practical quantitation limit.

6. Monitoring well 90-1 is located near the center of the landfill and is approximately 1,700 feet upgradient from the Riverdale well (as shown on Attachment A of this

² The well is 14-inches in diameter, 200 feet deep with an open bottom, and screened from 55 to 125 feet below ground surface.

Order). Monitoring well 90-1 is also impacted by 1,1 -DCA and cis -1,2 -DCE. All the compounds detected in Monitoring well 90-1 were also detected in monitoring well 06-09.

MONITORING WELL 90-1		
monitoring event	1,1-DCA ¹	cis -1,2 -DCE ²
3Q06	1.7 ug/l	ND
4Q06	2.0 ug/l	0.31 ug/l
1Q07	1.6 ug/l	0.81 ug/l
2Q07	1.7 ug/l	
3Q07	1.8 ug/l	0.44 ^J ug/l

1. MCL = 5 ug/l

2. MCL = 6 ug/l

J value: detected above the method detection limit, yet value is below the practical quantitation limit

- In September 2007, the Discharger conducted an investigation to characterize the material in the unlined Waste Management Unit IV. A grab groundwater sample from boring WMUIV7, located within the footprint of Waste Management Unit IV and approximately 1,200 feet upgradient of the Riverdale well, contained 1,1-DCA at 2.8 ug/l. The public health goal for 1,1-DCA is 3.0 ug/l.
- Monitoring well 92-CIL was installed to monitor the leachate that percolates freely through the waste in Waste Management Unit I directly into groundwater. Monitoring well 92-CIL is approximately 1,000 feet upgradient from the Riverdale well (as shown on Attachment A of this Order). Monitoring well 92-CIL was last sampled for VOCs in the Third Quarter 2007 and results are presented in the table below. Benzene was reported at 9 times the MCL of 1.0 ug/l. No other VOCs exceeded a water quality goal.

MONITORING WELL 92-CIL			
1,2,4 trimethylbenzene	0.28 ^J ug/l	n-polybenzene	0.34 ^J ug/l
1,4 dichlorobenzene	4.0 ug/l	o-xylene	0.55 ^J ug/l
benzene	9.1 ug/l	p/m-xylene	1.0 ug/l
carbon disulfide	0.54 ^J ug/l	toluene	0.45 ^J ug/l
chlorobenzene	0.56 ^J ug/l	napthalene	0.39 ^J ug/l
cis 1,2 dichlororethylene	0.39 ^J ug/l	isopropylbenzene	0.43 ^J ug/l
ehtylbenzene	0.36 ^J ug/l		

J value: detected above the method detection limit, yet value is below the practical quantitation limit

- Monitoring well 85-25 is approximately 250 feet downgradient of the landfill's point of compliance and 200 feet upgradient of the Riverdale well (as shown on Attachment

A of this Order). Like monitoring wells 06-09 and 90-1, monitoring well 85-25 is impacted by 1,1-DCA. All compounds detected in monitoring well 85-25 were also detected at higher concentrations in upgradient wells. The Discharger stated in its 2006 annual monitoring report that: "...concentrations of 1,1-DCA, located just beyond the boundary of the northwest corner of the Site, in wells 85-25 and 85-7, have been very consistent over the last 10 plus years with average concentrations of approximately 3 ug/l." The public health goal for 1,1-DCA is 3 ug/l.

MONITORING WELL 85-25	
monitoring event	1,1-DCA ¹
3Q06	3.2 ug/l
4Q06	1.5 ug/l
1Q07	1.1 ug/l
2Q07	1.8 ug/l
3Q07	2.0 ug/l

1. Applicable water quality goal. MCL = 5 ug/l

10. Monitoring well 06-01A monitors the water table 30 feet upgradient of the Riverdale well (as shown on Attachment A of this Order). Samples collected from monitoring well 06-01A indicate that contamination is present 500-feet downgradient from the landfill and in the immediate vicinity of the Riverdale well. This well was installed in the third quarter of 2006, and VOCs were first detected in November 2006. Ethylbenzene, toluene, and xylenes have been detected but have not exceeded any applicable water quality protection standard. The table below identifies the reported concentration for PCE and chloroform.

MONITORING WELL 06-01A		
monitoring event	PCE ¹	chloroform ²
3Q06		
4Q06	0.61 ug/l	
1Q07	0.49 ug/l	1.2 ug/l
2Q07	0.48 ^J ug/l	
3Q07		0.42 ^J ug/l
4Q07	0.35 ug/l	
3/Q08		0.56 ug/l

1. MCL= 5 ug/l, PHG = 0.06 ug/l

2. Cal/EPA Cancer Potency Factor = 1.1 ug/l

J value: detected above the method detection limit, yet value is below the practical quantitation limit.

11. Monitoring well 06-01B is also installed just 30 feet upgradient of the Riverdale well (as shown on Attachment A of this Order). Monitoring well 06-01B is screened from 80.5 to 90.5 feet below ground surface to monitor the same interval as the pumps in

the Riverdale well. Monitoring data from this well shows that contamination is detectable at depth in the aquifer. The table below identifies the reported concentration for constituents of concern that exceeded an applicable water quality protection standard. This well was installed in the third quarter of 2006, and VOCs were first detected in August 2006. The following VOCs were also detected at levels below the MCL: dichloromethane, 1,2,3, trichlorobenzene, and bromodichloromethane.

MONITORING WELL 06-01B: CONSTITUENTS THAT EXCEED WATER QUALITY STANDARDS			
monitoring event	TCE ¹	benzene ²	chloroform ³
3Q06			7.9 ug/l
4Q06			4.7 ug/l
1Q07		0.87 ug/l	2.3 ug/l
2Q07			
3Q07			
4Q07			
3/Q08	0.29 ug/l		

1. MCL Goal = 0.0 ug/l, PHG = 0.8 ug/l
2. MCL= 1 ug/l, PHG = 0.15 ug/l, Cal/EPA Cancer Potency Factor = 0.35 ug/l
3. Cal/EPA Cancer Potency Factor = 1.1 ug/l

12. The Riverdale Community drinking water supply well is located approximately 500 feet down gradient of the landfill's point of compliance (as shown on Attachment A of this Order). On 31 May 2006, this well was sampled for 40 CFR 258 Appendix I and II analytes. The following analyte groups had no detectable concentrations: polychlorinated biphenyls, chlorinated herbicides, semivolatile organic compounds, volatile organic compounds, organophosphorus pesticides, mercury, or total cyanide. The Riverdale well did contain nitrate at 7.9 mg/l, and TDS was reported at 380 mg/l. No metals exceeded their applicable water quality standard. On 3 November 2008, the Riverdale well was again sampled. Draft results submitted on 10 November 2008 show that no VOCs were detected. Furthermore, no metals exceeded any water quality limit.
13. Groundwater quality data and flow direction measurements provided by the Discharger indicate that the groundwater treatment system is undersized and unable to prevent the migration of the VOC plume.
14. The Discharger's failure to comply with its monitoring and/or reporting requirements has prevented the Central Valley Regional Board from evaluating whether the Bonzi plume can be ruled out as a threat to the Riverdale Community's drinking water supply.

15. To summarize, the Bonzi plume has polluted downgradient drinking water monitoring wells within the Riverdale Community. A groundwater extraction and treatment system and a landfill gas extraction system have been installed and are operating intermittently at the landfill. The third quarter 2008 groundwater monitoring data from the landfill's groundwater monitoring wells indicates that pollutants in groundwater are still present both on and off the site. Therefore, the groundwater extraction system has not contained the entire VOC plume.
16. This Amendment to the CAO requires the Discharger to: (1) prepare a water supply replacement plan and submit it to the Central Valley Regional Board for approval; and (2) immediately implement the plan and supply replacement water to any facility and or residence with a water supply that has been affected by the release of waste from the landfill.
17. CWC section 13304(c)(1) provides that: *“Any person who has discharged or discharges waste into waters of this state in violation of any waste discharge requirements or other order or prohibition issued by a Regional Water Board or the state board, or who has caused or permitted, causes or permits, or threatens to cause or permit any waste to be discharged or deposited where it is, or probably will be, discharged into the waters of the state and creates, or threatens to create, a condition of pollution or nuisance, shall upon order of the Regional Water Board clean up the waste or abate the effects of the waste, or, in the case of threatened pollution or nuisance, take other necessary remedial action, including but not limited to, overseeing cleanup and abatement efforts. A cleanup and abatement order issued by the state board or a Regional Water Board may require the provision of, or payment for, uninterrupted replacement water service, which may include wellhead treatment, to each affected public water supplier or private well owner. [emphasis added] Upon failure of any person to comply with the cleanup or abatement order, the Attorney General, at the request of the board, shall petition the superior court for that county for the issuance of an injunction requiring the person to comply with the order. In the suit, the court shall have jurisdiction to grant a prohibitory or mandatory injunction, either preliminary or permanent, as the facts may warrant.”*
18. The issuance of this Order is an enforcement action taken by a regulatory agency and is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Resources Code, section 21000 et seq.), pursuant to California Code of Regulations, title 14, section 15321(a)(2). The implementation of this Order is also an action to assure the restoration of the environment and is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (Pub. Resources Code, section 21000 et seq.), in accordance with California Code of Regulations, title 14 sections 15308 and 15330.
19. Any person aggrieved by this action of the Central Valley Water Board may petition the State Water Board to review the action in accordance with CWC section 13320

and California Code of Regulations, title 23, sections 2050 and following. The State Water Board must receive the petition by 5:00 p.m., 30 days after the date of this Order, except that if the thirtieth day following the date of this Order falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or state holiday, the petition must be received by the State Water Board by 5:00 p.m. on the next business day. Copies of the law and regulations applicable to filing petitions may be found on the Internet at: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/public_notices/petitions/water_quality or will be provided upon request.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT, pursuant to CWC section 13304, and all applicable law, Cleanup and Abatement Order No. R5-2006-0721 is hereby amended to require that Ma-Ru Holding Company, Inc. and Bonzi Sanitation Landfill, Inc. Partnership, their agents, successors, and assigns, shall comply with the tasks below. Compliance with these requirements shall include, but not be limited to, completing the tasks listed below.

“Affected well” is defined to mean any water supply well in which water does not meet federal, state or local drinking water standards for applicable pollutants.

1. **By 1 January 2009**, the Discharger shall submit a plan to supply drinking water to the Riverdale Community without any cost to the Riverdale community. The plan must include a short-term remedy that could be implemented immediately, such as connection to the existing City of Modesto water supply line. A copy of the plan shall be provided to the Riverdale Community.
2. Any domestic or municipal drinking water well downgradient of the Bonzi Landfill that has been affected (as defined above) shall be immediately supplied with replacement water at no cost to the landowner. The Discharger shall supply the replacement water within 24 hours of its knowledge that the well has been affected.
3. Within 48 hours of providing water to the landowner of the affected domestic or municipal drinking water, the Discharger shall notify the Central Valley Water Board and Stanislaus County Environmental Health Department that it has implemented its water supply plan.
4. Once the Discharger begins supplying replacement drinking water, it shall continue to do so until notified that it may cease by the Executive Officer.

If, in the opinion of the Executive Officer, the Discharger fails to comply with the provisions of Amended Order No. R5-2006-0721, the Executive Officer may refer this matter to the Attorney General for judicial enforcement or may issue a complaint for administrative civil liability.

Failure to comply with this Order may result in the assessment of an Administrative Civil Liability of up to \$10,000 per violation per day, pursuant to the CWC sections 13350, and/or 13385. The Central Valley Water Board reserves its right to take any enforcement actions authorized by law.

This Order is effective upon the date of signature.

PAMELA C. CREEDON, Executive Officer

3 December 2008

Date

Attachment A: map
CC/HDH/WSW:30Nov08

